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PON-14-505

Pre-Application Workshop Questions and Answers

Advancing Clean Energy from Biogas, Biomethane, and Natural Gas

Applicant Eligibility:

Q.1:
On page 28, item 10 – should it say ‘natural gas IOU service territory’ instead of ‘electric IOU service territory’
A.1:
Yes, it should read ‘natural gas IOU service territory’. This has been corrected in an Addendum 2.
Q.2:
Are there any circumstances whatsoever where a project in POU territory can qualify?
A.2:
Yes, projects located within the POU territory can qualify so long as they can demonstrate benefits to natural gas IOU ratepayers. 
Q.3:
If a POU does not handle natural gas but instead uses IOU natural gas, can it apply?

A.3:
Applicant eligibility has been changed to allow publicly-owned utilities so long as a direct benefit to natural gas IOU ratepayers can be shown. Please refer to the solicitation Addendum 2.
Q.4:
SMUD is a natural gas user of PG&E gas. Because POUs are users of IOU natural gas, shouldn’t they be eligible?
A.4:
Please see response to question 3.
Q.5:
According to California Public Utilities Code section 890, the PIER Natural Gas program is being funded by a ratepayer surcharge on all natural gas consumed in California and the purpose of the program should benefit California natural gas ratepayers by funding public interest research and development activities. 
In Sacramento (or SMUD territory), the natural gas (NG) customers are PG&E NG users/customers.  SMUD as POU has several NG-powered plants (combined cycle and simple cycle power plants). 
Therefore, since SMUD and its customers are NG users under PG&E natural gas territory, SMUD should be eligible to apply in this solicitation (PON 14 -505 Advancing Clean Energy from Biogas, Biomethane and Natural Gas).
Important Note: There are two PONs that were released recently, namely: Program Opportunity Notice - PON-14-504 2014 Industrial Natural Gas Energy Efficiency Grants and Program Opportunity Notice - PON-14-503 Natural Gas Pipeline Safety and Damage Prevention Grant. These PONs are not excluding publicly own utilities to apply. Why?
A.5:
Please see response to question 3.
Q.6:
According to California Public Utilities Code section 890, the PIER Natural Gas program is being funded by a ratepayer surcharge on all natural gas consumed in California and the purpose of the program should benefit California natural gas ratepayers by funding public interest research and development activities. Therefore, the screening criteria should be ---- each demonstration or deployment site should be located in an investor-owned NG utility service area (PG&E, SDG&E, or SoCalGas Co.) and should not be --- each demonstration or deployment site should be located in an California electric IOU service territory.
A.6:
Please see response to question 3.
Q.7:
Since in Sacramento (or SMUD territory) customers are PGE NG users, or SMUD (is POU) in itself is NG users for thermal/NG power plants, therefore, NG users in Sacramento should be eligible, thus, SMUD should be eligible.
A.7:
Please see response to question 3.
Project Eligibility:
Q.8:
For topic A, I noticed that some of the projects can include strategies that increase biogas generation and can you comment on what types of projects that increase biogas generation would be favorable or attractive and are they linked to some quantity of methane or can it be increasing biogas generation.
A.8:
Please refer to Section B, Topic A (page 12) of the PON. Part of this section states that "also included are strategies that will increase the production and methane content of biogas from different sources, possibly through codigestion of mixed feedstocks, use of macronutrients for boosting digester performance, and other emerging strategies." The PON does not recommend or specify which of the projects would be favorable or attractive. It is up to applicant to explain how the proposed strategies or technologies exceed the biogas production level of current technologies and to demonstrate how the proposed project meets the PON requirements.
Q.9:
For Topic C, a 5-50 kWe target is given, is there a lower limit?
A.9:
No, there is no lower limit. Anything small (even 1 kWe or less) could qualify so long as it can be cost effective, have an impact on energy usage, and succeed in the California market

Q.10:
For Topic C, the solicitation calls out commercial, light industrial, and multi-family residential. Are you excluding single-family residential?
A.10:
No, single-family residential is not excluded. The sectors in the solicitation were provided as an example. If the proposed CHP technology can demonstrate cost and energy savings in the California market at very small-scale, it can still qualify.
Q.11:
I have a question regarding project suitability for this solicitation.  Our company develops microbial strains and methods for the bioconversion of methane to higher value chemicals and other products.  We are interested in extending our platform to utilize biogas as input.  Could this project fit into topic area A of this solicitation
A.11:
No, said project would not fit. Topic A specifies that biogas must be utilized for on-site power production or upgraded to biomethane for pipeline injection. There must be some aspect of power generation or biomethane production.
Match Funding and Commitment Letters:

Q.12:
For match funding, if there were previous grants or investments in the technology to get it to the level it is today and you are making a further advancement does that previous grant to bring the technology to its current level count as match funds?
A.12:
No, past grants used to get the technology to its current state would not qualify as match funds. Please refer to Part I, Section E, Item 2 of the PON to see what qualifies as match funds. 
Terms and Conditions:

Q.13:
One question I had was in regard to the royalty calculation. The funds from the CEC program will typically not cover the entire cost of developing, design for manufacturing, marketing and other costs to successfully bring a product to market.  How is the royalty calculation computed if the CEC dollars cover only a portion of the above costs?  For example of the CEC dollars only covered 10% of the above costs would the royalty calculation be based on 10% of the revenue received from that product?

A.13:
The Terms and Conditions do not specify such method of calculations. The intent is to have the state repaid its investment in your technology so the funds can be applied in the future to fund other research. Unlike other Commission programs there is no agreed to investment allocation methodology.
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